
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   Friday, 5 March 2021 
 

 
Committee:  
Communities Overview Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 15 March 2021 
Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING - PLEASE USE THE LINK ON THE 
AGENDA TO LISTEN TO THE MEETING 
 
Members of the public will be able to listen to this meeting by clicking on this link: 

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/communities-overview-committee-15-march-2021/ 
 
Please note that this meeting will be made available through Microsoft Teams Live Events 
- your device will need to meet the minimum specification as detailed on the Microsoft 
website at this link: Device Specification  

 You will need to download MS Teams (free) and click on the link to listen to the meeting 
if you are using a PC  

 If using a mobile device, you will need to download the MS Teams app (free) before 
clicking the link  

 Use the link at 2.00 pm on the day of the meeting and click on ‘Join as Guest’  

 You may receive an error message or a request for login details if you try to gain access 
before 2.00 pm 
  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
Members of Communities Overview Committee 
Cecilia Motley (Chairman) 
Nick Hignett (Vice Chairman) 
Ted Clarke 
Nigel Hartin 
Roger Hughes 

Vivienne Parry 
Keith Roberts 
Leslie Winwood 
Tina Woodward 

 
Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Emily Marshall  Committee Officer 
Tel:   01743 257717   Email:   emily.marshall@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/communities-overview-committee-15-march-2021/
https://support.office.com/en-gb/article/get-started-with-microsoft-teams-live-events-d077fec2-a058-483e-9ab5-1494afda578a#bkmk_systemreq


AGENDA 
 
1  Apologies for absence and substitutions  

 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
 

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 25th January 2021  
 
To consider the minutes of the Community Overview Committee meeting held 
on 25th January 2021.  Minutes to Follow 
 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has 
been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this 
meeting is 2pm on Thursday 11th March 2021. 
 
 

5  Member Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given notice.  
Deadline for notification for this meeting is 5.00pm on Wednesday 10th March 
2020. 
 
 

6  Chairmans Update  
 
The Chairman of the Communities Overview Committee will provide a verbal 
update. 
 
 

7  Public Rights of Way  
 
To receive an update on work to maximise access to public rights of way. 
 
Contact: Clare Featherstone – Culture, Leisure and Tourism Manager 01743 
255067 
 
 

8  Rural Transport  
 
To receive an update on trials of new ways of providing rural transport.   
 
Contact: James Willocks – Passenger Transport Group Manager 07143 252474 
 



 
9  Libraries Strategy (Pages 1 - 12) 

 
To receive a report on the Libraries Strategy. 
 
Contact: Mark Barrow – Executive Director Place 01743 258919 
Jane Trethewey - Assistant Director Homes and Communities 01743 254917 
 
 

10  Community and Rural Strategy (Pages 13 - 36) 
 
To receive an update on the Rural and Communities Strategy.   
 
Contact: Jane Trethewey – Assistant Director Homes and Communities 01743 
254917 
 
 

11  Date/Time of next meeting  
 
The Committee is next scheduled to meet on Wednesday, 23rd June 2021 at 
10.00 a.m. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and Date 
 
Communities Overview 
Committee 
 
Time 2pm,  
Date 15th March 2021 
 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 
 

 

SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 
 
 

Responsible Officer Mark Barrow / Jane Trethewey  
e-mail: Mark.Barrow@shropshire.gov.uk            

Jane.Trethewey@shropshire.gov.uk 
 

 Tel:01743258919 
       01743254917 

    Fax   

1. Summary 
 
The proactive approach from our communities to help address the pandemic has 
demonstrated their capacity and skills and reinforced the Council’s role as facilitator. 
In addition to the traditional functions of libraries, with their presence in all our key 
market towns and some smaller rural communities, their role in supporting and in 
some cases leading on recovery needs maximising, providing a safe space for the 
wider community, and especially the more vulnerable, to access advice, information 
and services. 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has seen a move to working from home for many people, 
including Council staff, which is changing the role of smaller market towns and 
villages. Shropshire Council is undergoing a transformation to develop new ways of 
working, which includes the closure of Shirehall, Shropshire Council’s HQ in 
Shrewsbury and the development of a new operating model to serve local 
communities.  
 
An enhanced role for libraries and library and information services in the delivery of 
community priorities is needed going forward, with a clear narrative for the future of 
Shropshire libraries as community hubs. Library services are in a trusted position of 
strength to work with local partners to enable and provide local services in response 
to significant changes in the way people and communities live their daily lives. 
 
Shropshire Libraries are a vibrant service at the heart of our communities. They 
provide environments that allow people to feel safe, where generations of people 
meet freely in a public space and where learning, discovery and innovation are 
encouraged.  
 
Shropshire has a strong tradition of communities coming together when the need 
arises, and this has been evident with the pandemic when working in partnership to 
deliver their local public services. We are grateful to all the community partnerships 
in these challenging times whose continued commitment, time and resources enable 
the delivery and future development of library services.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Mark.Barrow@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:Jane.Trethewey@shropshire.gov.uk


Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  2 

 
 

Our draft library strategy outlines our promise as Shropshire Council and sets out the 
priorities we will focus on to deliver a commercial, contemporary and adaptable 
community service for the future. 
 
It outlines our vision and strategic objectives, highlights the importance of libraries 
within the community, describes our core offer and provides a clear direction for the 
future of Shropshire Libraries. We see corporate and community collaborations as 
being integral to the long-term sustainability of the service. We will work together 
with our friendly, highly-skilled and experienced staff, to build on our offer around 
Reading, Information, Digital, Health, Learning, Culture and Creativity whilst working 
with partners to expand the services with our communities and businesses.  
 
Shropshire Council has engaged consultants to build on the draft strategy by 
developing a Library Transformation Strategy which will review the current Library 
Services and make recommendations that will transform the library and information 
services and assets to deliver a modern, exciting and sustainable service, together 
with partners, which provides for the needs of the communities we serve. The 
Transformation Strategy will build on opportunities identified as a result of the review, 
and as a result of the considerable life changes which are resulting from the COVID 
pandemic.  

 
Recommendations 
 
    2.1 Communities Overview Committee members provide feedback and comment          

in respect of progress made to date and the next stages of the  library 
transformation. 
 

    2.2  Communities Overview Committee provide feedback and comment on the 
development of the new Library Transformation Strategy. 

 
    2.3 Communities Overview Committee receives a further update in respect of the  

 Library Transformation strategy project in autumn 2021. 
 

REPORT 

 
3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

 
 

3.1. A risk management log is being maintained for all aspects of work associated 
with transition of the library redesign. This enables identification and 
assessment of risks, as well as identification of  

 mitigating actions.  
 

3.2. Human Rights: No adverse impact expected 
 

3.3. Equalities Impact and Needs Analyses (EINA) will be developed for the 
services as part of the Library Transformation Strategy project and local 
engagement to enable a wide range of stakeholders to contribute to the 
analysis. 

Page 2



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  3 

 
 

 A low-level risk has been identified: access in rural areas. It is expected that  
 this risk will be mitigated by the partners supporting local developments  
 and reconfiguring Shropshire Local provision and library services. 
 

3.4. The EINAs will continue to be updated over the coming months as the final 
delivery models are shaped. 

 
3.5. The future redesign has the potential for greater freedom in local 

communities. Where collaboration and opportunities are identified, the 
outcomes identified from the library transformation project have the potential 
to further support and engage local communities. 

 

4. Financial Implications 
 

4.1. A savings target of £137K has been identified for 2021/22which will be 
achieved through a range of efficiency savings and improved operating 
arrangements. 

 
 

5. Climate Change Appraisal 
 

5.1. Climate Change and its effect on service delivery to be identified as part of 
Library Transformation Strategy with recommendations for carbon neutrality 
an integral part of future service delivery.   

 

6. Shropshire Libraries Current Draft Strategy 
 
The Shropshire Library services’ current draft strategy has identified five strategic 
ambitions that express our vision for the next five years. 
 
Our Vision is for libraries in Shropshire to be at the heart of their communities 
making connection to improve people's lives. 
 
Our Mission is to provide physical and digital library services and spaces, that 
inspire people’s learning, imagination and discovery, to connect and fulfil their 
potential; to articulate the value of library services to their communities. 
 
These are identified by: 

 

 Improved opportunities for literacy, reading and culture 
Reading, Literacy, Culture and Creativity are increasingly important parts of 
library services, creating relationships that ensure library services 
enhance people's lives as a place of discovery, diversity, and interactivity. 

 

 Improved health and wellbeing of Shropshire Communities 
We play an important role in supporting both mental and physical health and 
wellbeing of people living and visiting the county. Shropshire Library Services 
partnership work around health and wellbeing is recognised and shared 
nationally as an example of good practice.    

Page 3



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  4 

 
 

 

 Communities that are resilient and inclusive   
 Library services play a key role in building stronger, resilient and connected 
communities. We provide services and events, together with our partners, that 
help address health needs, contribute to tackling inequalities and support skills 
development and learning in individuals, families and groups across all ages and 
abilities. 

 

 Libraries that are more innovative and sustainable 
Increasingly our Library services are contributing significantly to National and 
Local cross cutting aims such as reducing social isolation, living independently 
and embracing rurality. This is vital to supporting an improved quality of life and 
sustainable communities in Shropshire.   

 

 People are enabled to discover the digital world  
In the 21st century it is vital that people of all ages can get online, and that they 
have the skills to engage with the digital world safely and effectively. Basic digital 
confidence is essential for day-to-day life and to thrive within the workforce. 

 
These can be further explored with Cross-cutting Themes that; 

 

 Articulate our value to communities, partners and other stakeholders   
 

 Develop our services to meet changing community aspirations in line with 
council priorities, focusing on the most   

                      vulnerable and promoting independence 
 

 Continue to develop the library network as centres for innovation expansion 
and community collaboration 

 

 Retain independent access to our network of libraries within the context of 
physical and digital services   

            

 Build on our successes and partnerships to engage communities in 
sustainable co-delivery, optimising and enhancing our  

           spaces  
 

 Optimise management structures that can deliver strategic ambitions for 
cross-service delivery 

  

 Proactively seek funding to enhance service excellence and deliver changing 
priorities 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  5 

 
 

Strategic Overview 
 

6.1. Improved opportunities for literacy, reading and culture 
 

We have a unique position within our communities, offering a wide range of 
services that are available to all. Reading, Literacy, Culture and Creativity are 
increasingly important parts of libraries, creating relationships that ensure 
libraries enhance people's lives as a place of discovery, diversity, and 
interactivity. Reading and literacy are fundamentally important life skills that 
enable families to be healthier, happier and more self-assured. This also 
empowers greater investigation and innovation allowing libraries to move 
towards expanding the services we give our customers and the commercial 
opportunities offered through a range of high-quality activities. 
 
We will explore opportunities to: 
 

 Further develop inclusive family learning activities to support the home 
learning environment and lifelong learning, encouraging reading for pleasure 
and literacy 
  

 Maintain and extend library materials in response to circumstances to ensure 
inclusivity of access to literature and creative opportunities. 
  

 Enable staff, customers, entertainers and the curious to envisage how culture 
and technology could be used to make library services  more accessible. 
  

 Empower staff, people and communities to experience and co-create cultural 
enrichment 
  

 Embed opportunities for a wider range of arts, culture events and 
performances, allowing staff to develop and own projects and share their 
experiences, knowledge and learning with their teams and communities. 
 

6.2. Improved health and wellbeing of Shropshire Communities 

Shropshire Library Services plays an important role in supporting health and 

wellbeing of people living in in the county. Our partnership work around health 

and wellbeing is recognised and shared on the national level as an example of 

good practice.    

Partnerships with Public Health and the voluntary and community sector 

is strengthened through innovative ways of working. Being part of this multi 

organisational style of service delivery is most helpful when supporting a complex 

spectrum of individual needs. Investment in health and wellbeing resources, fit for 

purpose environment and trained professional staff expands on possibilities of 

people centred support. Highlighting national, regional and local campaigns gives 

us focus to engage people around their health and wellbeing in a meaningful, 

friendly and non-clinical way.  

 

Page 5



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  6 

 
 

We will:  

 Expand on partnership work with Public Health, GPs, voluntary, community 

and other professional organisations to deliver health and wellbeing support in 

the community through Social Prescribing and other health related initiatives  

 Invest in health and wellbeing resources to lower the health inequality gap  

 Increase staff confidence through training development   

 Engage communities to explore living well in a creative way to generate 

curiosity and aspiration  

 Expand on opportunities to deliver library service benefits to the most 

vulnerable and/or living in the most rural areas  

 Support wellbeing of families and individuals throughout different stages of 

life  

 Provide accessible environments, activities and resources for people with 

specific needs, such as visually impaired, hard of hearing, people living with 

dementia, autism and other needs  

6.3. Communities that are resilient and inclusive   

 We have a key role to play in building stronger, resilient and connected 

communities. We provide services and events that help address health needs, 

impact upon the wider factors of health and contribute to tackling health 

inequalities in individuals, families and groups across all ages. As trusted, safe 

and welcoming community spaces, libraries offer a route for public services to 

reach communities, providing access to information and signposting, creating 

social spaces for people to come together and access services that encourage 

learning and ambition, improve skills and self-confidence, promote wellbeing 

and individuality and reducing loneliness and isolation.  

 We will: -  

 Enable people to prevent their mental ill-health from escalating and to recover 

and live healthy and happy lives.     

 Understand loneliness and deliver services to help lessen its effects by 

providing services that enable people connect.    

 Encourage understanding and tolerance between generations     

 Create space to allow kindness to be talked about and experienced.  

 Identify and promote sustainable and effective mobile services to meet the 

needs of our communities.   

 Develop environmental, social and economical workable services that meet 

local community needs.   

Page 6



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  7 

 
 

 Maintain and improve visits and digital networks to ensure that we 

our relevant for business, innovation and entertainment.    

 Ensure energy use is considered to reduce the impact on climate change and 

wider environment.    

 Continue to work with Town, Parish councils and local organisations to deliver 

community focussed and managed services.    

 Work with internal and external partners to identify and target those at risk 

and provide pro-active arrangements that support communities.  

6.4. Library Services that are more innovative and sustainable 

Increasingly our Library Services are contributing significantly to National and 

Local cross cutting aims such as reducing social isolation, living independently 

and embracing rurality. This is vital to supporting an improved quality of life and 

sustainable communities in Shropshire. We will embed Library Services firmly 

within planning frameworks such as Place Plans,  the Cultural Strategy and 

Community  and Rural Strategy.  

Working with other sectors and partners we will also embed Library Services 

within their work to create models of good practice and develop skills and 

knowledge within the creative sector to deliver new programs. 

We will ensure a mixed economy model of Library Service provision through our 

services across the town and rural villages of Shropshire supported by mobile 

and digital services covering the more rural areas ensuring everyone has access 

to relevant and timely resources  

We will continuously assess our ability to respond 

effectively to unplanned circumstances, altering our services to reflect the 

restrictions in place whilst ensuring high quality delivery.  

We will: - 

 work with partners to support local businesses Through the ‘Let’s Do 

Business In Shropshire’ programme   

 Increase employability by supporting skills and learning and helping people 

back into work  

 Expand the tourism offer to grow visitor economy through enhanced 

connectivity and innovation  

 invest in Library spaces so they are flexible and attractive vibrant multi-

functional spaces  

 explore further opportunities for co-location  

 invest in our IT infrastructure digital equipment and invest in our staff in terms 

of IT training  

Page 7



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  8 

 
 

 Continue to invest in Staff Development in line with the Public Library Skills 

Strategy to ensure a flexible, confident work force equipped to respond to any 

future needs of our communities  

 look for new funding streams to develop and support the delivery of innovative 

services  

 explore ways of increasing income generation  

 look for new opportunities for marketing our spaces and services  

 work with volunteers to provide activities and services particularly suited to the 

local area   

6.5. People are enabled to discover the digital world  

In the 21st century it is vital that people of all ages are able to get online, and that 

they have the skills to engage with the digital world safely and effectively. Basic 

digital confidence is essential for day-to-day life and to thrive within the 

workforce. Beyond that basic level the digital world offers incredible opportunities 

to connect with others, to engage with cultural and creative experiences, and to 

broaden learning and understanding in new ways. This has been highlighted 

during the Covid pandemic.  

Effective digital engagement has the potential to improve a person’s 

employability, to improve mental well-being throughout all life stages, and to help 

people stay independent in their own homes for longer. Many people are at risk 

of being excluded or left behind as technology moves on, so Shropshire Library 

Services are playing a key role to enable digital access, to give people the skills 

they need, and to provide access to digital services that people want to use. We 

want to build on this role by further enabling people to participate in the digital 

world.  

To achieve this, we will:  

 Ensure that our IT and digital services and equipment are robust, up to date 

and relevant to what our customers need.  

 Ensure that staff have the skills to deliver services that reflect the digital 

needs of communities and individuals.  

 Work with partners to deliver projects that are either wholly digital, or that 

include digital elements that complement our physical services.  

 Continue to explore new ways of creating and sharing our own digital content 

to further develop Shropshire Library Services vibrant online community. 

 Look for innovative and emerging technological solutions to transform the 

services we deliver and the ways that we deliver them.  

 Work with partners, staff and volunteers to place library Services  at the heart 

of digital support and learning for Shropshire.  

Page 8



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  9 

 
 

 Be proactive in seeking funding to develop digital projects and to invest in new 

equipment and solutions.  

 

7. Additional Information 
 

7.1. Consultation 
  

Over 900 people responded to our original Library Strategy consultation that ran  
during October/November 2019. During National Libraries Week we engaged 
over 400 library users with our quick snapshot survey and Library Roadshows. 
We were also able to capture views from several non-users. 

 
The key themes from the consultation in 2019 and pre COVID were: 

 Overall levels of satisfaction with library services are high. 

 Borrowing books and other items remains the main reason why people visit 

their library.  

 Customers view library staff as the most important aspect of the service. 

Opening times and range/quality of library stock are also very important.  

 Library staff are highly rated regarding customer service and approachability. 

 In terms of the future many people are keen for libraries to stay as they are. 

People argue strongly for the importance of libraries to individuals and 

communities. 

 The largest proportion of responses were from female library users aged 60+. 

Levels of engagement with those under 30 was very low. 

The key themes suggest we need to balance the needs of our ‘traditional’ 
users alongside the needs of other library service users. Developing services 
to attract new users is also essential to ensure that libraries stay relevant in  
the future. 
 
7.2. Library Transformation Project 
 
It is recognised that the COVID pandemic has had an enormous impact on  
The way we all go about our everyday lives and has increased our reliance on  
digital services and processes faster than anyone ever anticipated. It has  
resulted in people working from home and so local services are becoming  
more and more important.  
 
It is as a result of the changes over the last 12 months that the Library  
Services are undertaking a further piece of work to ensure that a new library 
strategy reflects the changing needs of communities as a result of the pandemic. 
In order to develop and finalise a new strategy which we hope will strengthen our 
Library Services and adapt to new demands we have engaged consultants to 
assist us in the process.  

Page 9



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  10 

 
 

 
They have been asked to: - 

 

 Collate and review the existing evidence base, working with Shropshire 
Council’s library team and other staff to provide a detailed report on the 
current service provision to include Library Peer Review feedback, previous 
consultation results, financial pressures, membership and visitor numbers, 
staffing, venues, opening hours, service provision, software and equipment, 
and building on the impetus already underway within the Council to transform 
both physical and digital services. 

 Consult with Place Directorate Senior Managers and Shropshire Council 
Directors on the Council’s desired approach to community-based services, 
with specific reference to the emerging Shropshire Local service model and 
the role that libraries might play in the delivery of this. 

 Consult key partners, such as Town and Parish Councils, Social Enterprises 
and VCSA to identify further opportunities for collaboration and innovation to 
better meet community needs 

 Review community need based on existing research, identifying strengths and 
weaknesses of current library service provision and conduct an assessment of 
value for money 

 Identify a key performance data/performance framework which will enable the 
library service to evidence the difference it is making to communities and 
council objectives 

 Review staffing, locations and opening hours, including mobile library service, 
in light of consultation responses and review of need 

 Recommend appropriate income generating opportunities, based on good 
practice elsewhere, external funding opportunities, and evidence of viability 

 Recommend new ways of working that will better meet community needs, 
within current financial restrictions and maximise alternative funding sources 

 Model a zero-based budget and staff structure, with venues, processes and 
equipment to deliver this new approach, in line with wider department 
redesign proposals – see background note below – and Shropshire Council’s 
Organisation Principles. 

 Draft a library transformation document which identifies the resources 
required to deliver the transformed service, with a detailed implementation 
and action plan  

 Provide a critique on the draft library strategy in order to ensure the strategy 
and transformation document are intrinsically linked whilst also demonstrating 
how the library service will deliver against the Community and Rural Strategy, 
the Corporate Plan and the Shropshire Cultural Strategy 

 Draft a short, compelling, community focused summary of the strategy for 
wider dissemination 

 Draft a consultation framework for the service transformation proposals 

 Understand how services contribute to the health and wellbeing of Shropshire 
people over recent years? 

 
This work is planned to be delivered by the end of May 2021. 

 
 

Page 10



Communities Overview Committee 15th March 2021: SHROPSHIRE LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

 

Please contact Michael Lewis on 07458120752  11 

 
 

8. Conclusions 
 

Shropshire Council is undergoing a transformation to develop new ways of  
working, which includes the closure of Shirehall, Shropshire Council’s HQ in  
Shrewsbury and the development of ‘Shropshire Local’ hubs in local  
communities.  
 
There needs to be a better, agreed role for library Services and library and  
information services in the enablement and delivery of community priorities going  
forward, with a clear narrative for the future of Shropshire libraries as community  
hubs. 

 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Summary Report 

Library Strategy Phase 1 2019.pdf

Library Services 

Appendix 3 - Library Strategy Needs Assessment.pdf

Library Services 

Appendix 2 - Shropshire Library Services Strategy.pdf

Library Services 

Appendix 1 - Summary of Libary Services Strategy consultation.pdf

Library Services 

Appendix 4 - Library Services Strategy ESIIA.pdf 
 

Cabinet Member Lezley Picton (Portfolio Holder) 
 

Local Member All  
 

Appendices 
 

 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and Date 

 

Communities Overview 

Committee  

 

15 March 2021 

 

 

 Item 

 

 

 

 

Public 

 

 

Community and Rural Strategy 

 

Responsible officer 

Danial Webb – overview and scrutiny officer 

danial.webb@shropshire.gov.uk 

01743 258509 

 

1.0 Summary 

1.1 This report provides the committee with a copy of the draft Community and Rural 

Strategy, which Shropshire Council consulted on between on between October 

and December 2020. Shropshire Council’s Assistant Director, Homes & 

Communities will be attending the meeting, to provide a verbal update on 

progress in developing the strategy following this consultation. 

  

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1 That the Communities Overview Committee note the current strategy and identify 

any potential areas for further development. 

 

3.0 Opportunities and risks 

3.1 This report is provided by Shropshire Council’s overview and scrutiny officer for 

information only. Any assessment of the opportunities and risks afforded by the 

strategy will be presented when a revised strategy is presented to the committee 

for consideration. 

 

4.0 Financial assessment 

4.1 This report is provided by Shropshire Council’s overview and scrutiny officer for 

information only. Any financial assessment resulting from adopting the strategy 

will be presented when a revised strategy is presented to the committee for 

consideration. 

  

5.0 Report 

5.1 Shropshire Council’s Assistant Director, Homes & Communities, will be attending 

the committee to provide a verbal update on progress in developing the 

community and rural strategy, following public consultation. 

 

5.2 A copy of the draft strategy that the council consulted on is attached as appendix 

1. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 10



Communities Overview Committee 25 January 2021: Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme – 
suggested revisions 
 

 2 

 

List of background papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 

include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy 

 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

 

Portfolio Holder – Communities, Place Planning and Regulatory Services 

 

Local Member 

 

All 

 

Appendices 

 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy 

 

 

Page 14



Community and Rural Strategy
Collaborate, change together and achieve

September 2020

Page 15



Shropshire Council
Community and Rural Strategy
September 2020

Contents

Foreword	 3

The context of the strategy	 5

About Shropshire	 6

Developing our insights	 11

Our shared priorities	 16

Delivering the strategy	 17

High Level Delivery Plan 2020/21	 19

 

Version Change Made by Date

v.1 High Level Delivery 
Plan and Foreword 
added

Tom Dodds 26 June 2020

v.2 Amended following 
feedback

Tom Dodds 3 July 2020

v.2i Amended further Tom Dodds 8 July 2020

v.3 Amended following 
feedback from  
Gemma Davies

Tom Dodds 13 July 2020

v.4 Paragraphs on 
health needs added

Tom Dodds 16 July 2020

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

2

Page 16



Foreword 
Shropshire is the second largest inland county in the country and whilst 
the biggest population centres are Shrewsbury and Oswestry the 
remainder of the county is more rural and sparsely inhabited. We have 
communities living across our wonderful landscape and the Council 
recognised that there needed to be a strategy that was based on an 
understanding of place and that embraced the fact that different 
communities had different needs and ways to meet them, some they 
could address themselves, and others they would need support of one 
form or another to tackle.

In the summer of 2019 Shropshire Council agreed to embark on a 
Community and Rural Strategy. We have reviewed the significant 
amount of data and information the Council has access to, to give us an 
evidence base and we have been able to combine this understanding 
with the local knowledge to help identify the shared priorities, for 
which there has been general understanding and support. We have also 
listened to how local areas would like to work with Shropshire Council 
and the role that they would like the Council to fulfil as an enabler, as 
well as providing direction and a strategic lead.  We have used this to 
help us draft this strategy.

Whilst we have been having conversations and listening to what local 
areas would like to see in the strategy we have also been considering 
what the local governance arrangements might be to support the 
locally led delivery of the shared priorities. We need to design this 
together with our partners in the communities. There are questions 
to answer through this process including what are the most effective 
geographies, how will communities be engaged, how will Shropshire 
Council local Members help to influence and enable local delivery, 
and how would the local arrangements work? We also need to factor 
into our thinking the boundary review of Town and Parish Councils 
scheduled to start in May 2021.  

Since we started working on the Strategy Shropshire has been the 
subject of significant flooding and then the coronavirus pandemic. 
These events had and continue to have a big impact socially and 
economically. I believe the shared priorities endorse the energy that 
glowed in our communities during the pandemic, and that the purpose 
of this strategy will also be to embrace and provide solutions our 
different communities need in light of the pandemic, and how we move 
forward together for the benefit of us all. These challenging times have 
highlighted the diversity across the county and how resilient a lot of our 
rural areas are.

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

3

Page 17



We have the opportunity to use the strategy to change the way 
we work together across the council, with our partners and with 
communities to realise our shared priorities and make a real and  
lasting difference.

As I finish this foreword I would like to introduce the draft shared 
priorities we have developed together with representatives from 
our town and parish councils, the voluntary, community and social 
enterprise sector, and Shropshire Councillors. I look forward to  
working together to progress their delivery:

	 Keeping everyone happy and healthy, whatever their age
	 Helping people who are lonely to connect with others and  

enjoy themselves
	 Finding effective and sustainable ways to move people around
	 Embracing the skills and experience of our older generation
	 Making sure we have the right homes in the right places
	 Attracting and keeping young people in the county and 

developing a skilled workforce
	 Continuously improving physical and digital connectivity
	 Reducing our impact on the climate, nature and the  

wider environment

Gwilym Butler
Portfolio Holder for Communities,  
Place Planning and Regulatory Services

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

4

Page 18



The context of the strategy
The development of the Community and Rural Strategy has taken place 
over the past 12 months. The opportunity to develop the strategy came 
from the recognition that a holistic view of the needs of Shropshire 
communities would provide a solid starting point to help promote 
sustainability and resilience, and to ensure that the challenges and 
benefits of living in rural areas are taken into account. Since work on 
the strategy started Shropshire has experienced significant flooding in 
February 2020 which was quickly followed by the introduction of the 
lockdown requirements as the Covid-19 pandemic struck. Communities 
across the county have been considerably impacted, but have pulled 
together, demonstrated their strength and spirit as they have helped 
and supported themselves. This strength and resilience is at the heart 
centre of what this strategy aims to reinforce and enable.  

The strategy has two elements. The first is based around developing 
evidence based shared priorities for Shropshire as a whole, that are 
also relevant and recognisable to local communities. The second looks 
at how these can be implemented across the County and providing 
the framework for their delivery at a Shropshire Council area level and 
through action and delivery within and by local areas.

National context: The development of a Community and Rural Strategy 
for Shropshire sets out to realise local policy intentions and to reflect 
Government policy and strategy, including the Industrial Strategy,  
the Clean Growth Strategy and the 25 Year Environment Plan. The 
stated policy ambitions of the national administration are also  
being noted and factored in, including commitments around the 
levelling up of regional disparities and approaches towards climate 
change mitigation. 

The Shropshire strategy work seeks to complement collaborative 
endeavours at national level with other rural authorities, including 
through the Rural Services Network, and through the County Councils 
Network and the “Leading Edge” initiative being led by Cornwall Council 
to seek to address current inequities for rural and coastal authorities.
 
Sub-regional context: Additionally, the local work draws upon and is 
informed by local strategic partnership working, across borders with 
Wales and with other local authorities, through the Marches Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP), ”Midlands Engine”  and Midlands Connect 
infrastructure work, and the West Midlands Combined Authority 
(WMCA), and through ongoing work with other public sector bodies 
and community and voluntary sector organisations . 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

5

Page 19



About Shropshire
Shropshire is a large rural county, the second largest inland county in 
England, with a population density of 1 person per hectare.  Around 
57% of Shropshire’s population of 323,136 people (2019 mye) live in 
villages, hamlets and dwellings dispersed throughout the countryside. 
The remainder live in one of the 17 market towns and key centres of 
varying size, including Ludlow in the south and Oswestry in the north, 
or in Shrewsbury, the central county town. This geographic spread 
of diverse communities creates the social, economic and cultural 
patchwork set in flourishing natural environments that contributes to 
the quality of life of Shropshire people. 

Figure 1: Shropshire geographic area and population by age range

The rolling green landscape, open spaces and the culture and heritage 
of the County make Shropshire an attractive place to live, work and 
visit, whether in rural areas or within one of the historic market towns, 
with excellent schools, low crime rates and opportunity for everyone. 

Shropshire has a rich cultural heritage to discover and natural 
landscapes to explore, for residents and tourists alike. There are Roman 
and Iron Age sites; castles and historic buildings; theatres and museums; 
the Shropshire Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) which 
covers 23% of the county; parts of two World Heritage Sites, rivers and 
canals; walking and cycling routes including one of the largest Rights 

Total Area

Total

Age 80+

Age 65-79

Age 16-64

Age 5-15

Age 0-4

0%

Urban

10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Rural hamlets and isolated dwellings Rural town and fringe Rural village

2% 73% 4% 21%

43% 19% 23% 15%

42% 16% 27% 15%

39% 21% 24% 17%

44% 19% 22% 15%

44% 18% 23% 16%

47% 14% 24% 14%

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

6

Page 20



of Way networks in the country; geology and wildlife; and natural and 
industrial archaeology. 

Our large geography means that our economy operates and reaches in 
different directions. We have Birmingham and the Black Country south 
and east, Wales on our longest border to the west and Manchester 
and Staffordshire north and east, as well as Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire to the south.

Shropshire is a beautiful and attractive place appealing to visitors 
and drawing people to move here, and there are opportunities and 
challenges which need to be taken into account in the strategy. 

The population is older with the proportion of people aged 65 years 
and over being well above the national average and this is projected 
to continue. A higher proportion of Shropshire’s older population live 
in rural areas rather than urban areas, whilst young adults leave the 
county to go to university or for employment, and there is a falling birth 
rate. Population growth is due to the in migration of adults. 

Figure 2: Population change by broad age group

2016

0% 10%

0-4 Years

20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

2033

2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

5-15 Years 16-64 Years 65-84 Years 85+ Years

4.8 11.8 59.8 20.5 3.1

20.9 3.1

21.3 3.2

21.6 3.3

21.9 3.3

22.2 3.4

22.5 3.5

22.8 3.6

23.1 3.8

23.4 3.9

23.9 4.0

24.3 4.0

24.7 4.4

25.0 4.6

25.4 4.8

25.8 5.1

26.0 5.4

26.1 5.8

26.4 6.0

26.6 6.1

26.9 6.3

27.1 6.4

27.2 6.5

27.2 6.6

27.2 6.7

27.1 6.8

4.7 11.8 59.5

4.6 11.8 59.1

4.6 11.8 55.7

4.6 11.8 58.4

4.5 11.8 58.0

4.5 11.8 57.7

4.5 11.7 57.4

4.4 11.5 57.1

4.4 11.5 56.8

4.4 11.3 56.4

4.3 11.2 56.0

4.3 11.1 55.5

4.3 11.0 55.0

4.2 10.9 54.5

4.2 10.9 54.1

4.2 10.8 53.5

4.2 10.8 53.2

4.1 10.7 52.8

4.1 10.6 52.5

4.1 10.6 52.1

4.1 10.5 51.9

4.1 10.5 51.7

4.1 10.4 51.6

4.1 10.4 51.6

4.1 10.3 51.6

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

7

Page 21



This is an established pattern that presents future tests and 
opportunities to innovate and find solutions for the Council and others. 
By 2041 the working age population (16-64) will be almost the same 
size as the dependent population (0-15 and 65+). Whilst this doesn’t 
reflect the growing proportion of people aged 65 and above in the 
workforce, it does provide a strong indication that as Shropshire’s 
population is getting older the proportion and number who are of 
working age is projected to be reducing.  

There is also a projected growth in single person households in the 
future, particularly in the 65 years and older age group, which may 
change demand for types of housing and the need for social care 
support over time.

Health needs in Shropshire do vary from place to place, but there are 
some conditions which are more prevalent and which are preventable. 
Cancer, high blood pressure, coronary heart disease, obesity and 
diabetes are amongst these conditions. Some of the prevalence of the 
conditions may be linked to the older age of the population, but raising 
awareness and promoting the changing of lifestyles and behaviours 
across all age ranges will help people remain healthy for longer. 
Considering healthy life expectancy at birth by gender illustrates the 
differences between places on the expected average age that a person 
would be diagnosed with a disability or condition that would require 
treatment. This suggests that both males and females living in rural 
areas are likely to have more healthy life years, particularly in the south 
of Shropshire. 

Figure 3: Healthy life expectancy

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

8

Page 22



Being a large rural area, connectivity is vital to provide access to 
education, employment and leisure, shopping and health and care. This 
relates to both physical connectivity through highways and transport 
and digital connectivity through broadband and mobile phones. It is 
a key enabler for the economy and influences where people can live, 
particularly if they do not have access to a car. 

Good digital connectivity provides businesses with the opportunity 
to operate in different areas of the county, employees to work from 
home, and during the coronavirus lockdown it has enabled school pupils 
to carry-on learning at home. An issue that has come more into focus 
for pupils during the lockdown period is digital poverty, where families 
may not have had digital devices for children to use for lessons and 
school work at home. This also highlights the importance of ensuring 
and enabling social mobility. Schools and the Council have provided 
equipment to help reduce this digital divide during the lockdown.

Access to affordable housing of all tenures is a consistent challenge 
across Shropshire communities, and particularly in rural areas. This can 
lead to situations where young people who grew up in communities 
move away to find a home that they can afford, and sees rural 
populations get older as a result. There are also strong links between 
the larger affordability gaps (salary and house prices) and areas with an 
older population. 

Figure 4: Lower quartile and median quartile housing  
affordability ratio (the darker the shade the bigger the gap)

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

9

Page 23



Shropshire is one of the most self-contained local authority areas in the 
country. 71% of working people that live here also work here, although 
the south of the county does see more people commuting out for their 
work. On average those who travel out of the county for work earn 
more per week than those who live and work here. 

Whilst there are a small number of large employers, the majority are 
SMEs (small and medium sized businesses) with a higher proportion at 
the smaller end of the scale. Shropshire is a low wage economy and has 
a gross value added (GVA) that is lower than the England average with 
the gap continuing to grow.    

Unsurprisingly for a rural county agriculture and land-based industry 
are significantly more important for the local economy than they are 
for the national economy. Health and care accounts for 1 in 7 jobs, 
with manufacturing and retail both having 10% of employment in 
Shropshire. The fastest growing sectors since 2010 are professional 
services, property and accommodation and food services which have 
strong links to the visitor economy and opportunities offered by 
Shropshire’s great outdoor spaces for leisure activities. As the county 
reopens following the coronavirus lockdown, the impact on all sectors 
of the economy and how recovery plans can help businesses bounce 
back will become clear. 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

10

Page 24



Developing our insights
In order to develop an evidence led strategy there has been a 
significant period of identifying, collating and analysing a wide range 
of information covering social, environmental, and economic factors at 
both local and county wide geographies. 

In addition to this evidence base a survey was carried out of the town 
and parish Councils and the voluntary community and social  
enterprise sector.  

The key messages and insights arising from this work have been shared 
in forums where the data and the local knowledge have helped to 
inform the intelligence and shape the draft shared priorities. 

	 Workshop session with the town and parish Council’s and the 
voluntary community and social enterprise sector

	 Workshop for Members and senior managers
	 Discussions with the Shropshire Association of Local Councils 

(SALC) working group
	 Presentation to and discussion with the Shropshire Business Board

Key issues and messages

The workshop sessions and wider discussions identified a range of 
issues and challenges, as well as potential solutions and possible action 
areas. They will be useful to inform initial discussions in identifying 
actions to deliver the shared priorities in localities and for the whole  
of Shropshire.

Mental Health for all ages came through strongly. There were particular 
concerns raised about support for children and young people with the 
role of school nurses and college support highlighted, as was support 
for parents from pre-school upwards.  

Loneliness for all ages also resonated across all of the engagement 
work carried out. Access to support and services, both more formal 
and informal like local clubs and groups were raised, with access to 
opportunities in rural areas for children and young people a challenge, 
especially were transport was an issue. Access to venues, costs of 
the venues, and the availability of volunteers to run sessions were 
identified, leading to the challenge – “How can best use of assets in 
communities be made?”

The unintended consequences of changing how services are provided 
was used to illustrate how opportunities for interaction, particularly 
by older people, could inadvertently be reduced in communities. An 
example shared was changes being made to the provision of pensions 
with pensioners no longer picking up their pension from the Post 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

11

Page 25



Office; reducing opportunities to meet others socially, and potentially 
impact the local high street through a change in spending habits. 

The challenge of getting people around a large rural county like 
Shropshire was frequently raised. There is a reliance on private motor 
vehicles which can impact on those not old enough to drive, or who 
don’t have access to a vehicle. Transport for young people, especially 
in rural areas, came through, as did the safety of the roads and safety 
whilst on the roads. This included young drivers and parents of children 
at rural schools with poor pathways and narrow roads. Community 
transport has been a feature of community life particularly in rural areas 
where volunteer drivers help people access shops and services including 
health appointments. A number of risks and issues were shared 
including barriers such as fuel and cost; the huge burden on volunteer 
drivers; and new legislation which risked making community transport 
untenable. In addition, many volunteer drivers involved in community 
car schemes are retired and of an older age. 

Shropshire’s growing older population is often referred to as challenge 
for the public sector and the voluntary community and social enterprise 
sector. However, through the workshop discussions the value of their 
experience and knowledge was recognised and the opportunity to 
harness this and look at multi-generational learning and volunteering 
were suggested. One challenge that was shared was that older 
people are working for longer and this could impact on the numbers 
volunteering.

Housing of the right type in the right place for people to access 
education, employment, services and support was robustly 
communicated. Affordable housing and housing for key workers was 
regularly raised. For example, if there is a desire to reduce travel to 
work home care workers need to be able to access affordable homes 
in the communities they work in. Currently there is a strong connection 
between areas with higher older populations and bigger gaps between 
salary and house prices. Similarly housing and access to employment 
must link. The availability of affordable 1 and 2 bed properties close to 
employment or education for young people to move into when they 
leave home was highlighted. 

A particular challenge shared on a number of occasions was how to 
stop young people from leaving Shropshire, and how to attract young 
people to want to live here. The need to understand what young people 
are looking for in terms of education, employment, leisure and lifestyle, 
and housing and how to make Shropshire somewhere they want to be.

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

12

Page 26



Connectivity, whether digital or physical was raised and linked to many 
of the issues and challenges made through the engagement work. The 
importance of ensuring that the quality of highways was maintained 
wherever possible was made, as was road safety enforcement. The 
condition of Rights of Way was also raised.

In terms of digital infrastructure, the importance of access to high 
speed broadband and mobile signal 4G/5G for all communities for 
business, education, social contact and leisure was a consistent 
message. This was balanced with concerns that the resistance to 
infrastructure developments such as the erection of mobile phone 
masts, would slow down progress. The use of digital technology to 
increase access to services and reduce the need for people to travel  
eg for appointments, was popular, particularly in relation to Health.

A cross-cutting theme that would need to factor in all plans was 
climate change and nature recovery, ensuring that actions and policy 
strengthened the focus on reducing or removing the impact on the 
environment. The ambition that arose from the engagement work was 
to make Shropshire the place for best practice on these issues.

There were also some key messages that came through the wider 
engagement work in the development of the strategy. From the survey 
of the town and parish councils and the voluntary community and social 
enterprise sector two specific points stood out:

	 Respondent’s did not feel that they could influence decisions  
in Shropshire

	 A call for Shropshire Council to take a stronger role as an  
influence and leader, providing clarity of direction.

Through the workshops and engagement with the Shropshire 
Association of Local Councils (SALC) Working Group there was a clear 
message that one size does not fit all. The county is made up of a range 
of different communities that have different local needs and different 
structures and relationships. There could be a Shropshire wide plan 
that set out the actions that Shropshire Council would be progressing, 
but there would need to be bottom-up plans based on localities and 
developed from and owned by those communities. 

Insights from the February 2020 Floods and the Coronavirus Pandemic
The development of the Community and Rural Strategy evidence 
base, shared priorities, and the proposed approach, set out later in this 
strategy, was completed before the coronavirus pandemic lockdown 
restrictions and the national shielding requirements came into place.  

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

13

Page 27



A significant component of the Council’s response was to move quickly 
to support communities. The work is ongoing, but substantial learning 
has already taken place which can have a direct bearing on how the 
Community and Rural Strategy could be delivered. A key feature of the 
learning so far has been the similarity between the effective response 
from communities, organisations and the Council and the previously 
developed approach to delivering the shared priorities set out in the 
Delivering the Strategy section of this document. 

The learning has reinforced the recognition that rural and urban 
communities across Shropshire can and do, do a lot for themselves, 
requiring the Council to facilitate and enable them to support 
themselves rather than doing it to or for them. 

The value of a clear shared purpose has come through as a key driver 
for staff to change behaviours and operate in a flexible and agile 
manner. In addition to this, there are under-pinning principles that have 
been identified through the learning, which could support successful 
implementation of the Community and Rural Strategy share priorities  
in localities:

	 Making a difference for residents 
	 Having clearly defined and understood roles and responsibilities
	 Implementing adaptive and effective decision-making 
	 Being open-minded, embracing changes and learning  

from feedback
	 Demonstrating leadership by everyone involved 
	 Dealing with uncertainty by looking for and implementing 

solutions 
	 Communicating in a clear, concise, and timely way to all
	 Avoiding assumptions (get everyone on the same page)

Actions emerging from the learning which are relevant to the 
implementation of the shared priorities and working with  
localities include:

	 Developing the evidence base by integrating it with the new 
datasets that have and continue to emerge from the work 
to respond to coronavirus pandemic that allow for ongoing 
understanding of community needs, identification of inequality 
and areas for action

	 Building on multiagency partnerships in localities to sustain  
them for longer term, working closely with the VCSE, town and 
parish councils and other public sector colleagues to develop 
locality working

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

14

Page 28



Voluntary organisations and community groups have been at the heart 
of efforts to support vulnerable people, the shielded and communities 
more widely, working with the Council, private sector organisations and 
others to do this. Feedback from a survey of these groups carried out in 
April 2020 provided the following insights:

	 Loss of volunteers aged over 70 years. Although a number were 
‘lost’ because they were shielded many volunteer managers believed 
that there was a risk that volunteers would not come back after the 
lockdown.

	 Loss of income is a big concern, particularly where it was generated 
through training, charity shops, fundraising events, transport, and 
equipment loan.

	 Diversion of funds into Coronavirus grant schemes is a big concern with 
questions over whether there will be less money to fund the wider 
activities and support when the crisis has past.

	 Increased demand is a big concern. Many are worried they would not 
cope if there is a big recession and more people end up in hardship and 
debt (with basic needs not being met). A recession may also impact 
negatively on charitable giving.

	 Befriending has been in high demand but is a service area that has seen 
reduced investment in recent years. Some organisations are worried 
that people getting more regular support now will start to rely on it but 
there may not be the ability to keep up regular befriending contacts 
after the crisis.

	 Mental health support is a widely shared concern that has been raised 
for a while but highlighted further during the lockdown period. There is 
a sense that there not enough of the right support or training in place. 

	 Widely raised concerns about burn-out and mental health of staff and 
volunteers.

	 Risks to jobs and future redundancies where there are paid staff.
	 Risks that the sector will inevitably shrink. Organisations have run out of 

reserves now and some organisations normally expected to be in ‘good 
health’ are on the brink of collapse.

	 Positively many have highlighted that they have new volunteers but 
that there are people coming forward who won’t stay in place because 
a) they will go back to work and b) there is not any infrastructure 
support.

	 The lack of general voluntary community and social enterprise sector 
(VCSE) infrastructure has been a concern for a number of years. Most 
organisations think that they will need help later when things are 
operating more normally again and fear there will not be any help later.

	 VCSE and private sector partnerships have developed and that is seen as 
a real positive.  How can this be maintained in the future?

Many of the insights emerging from the VCSE survey chime with both 
the shared priorities and the proposed approach to implement to 
deliver the strategy the shared priorities on page 17. 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

15

Page 29



Our Shared Priorities 
Through the analysis of the evidence base and the feedback received 
through the engagement work it has been possible to develop a vision, 
aim and priorities which should resonate with all. The shared priorities 
and the actions taken to deliver them cannot stand in isolation. They are 
interdependent.

Vision: 

Sustainable Shropshire communities  
through local action

Aim: 

Shropshire; a great place to live, work,  
visit and play for everyone

Shared priorities:
	 Keeping everyone happy and healthy, whatever their age
	 Helping people who are lonely to connect with others and enjoy 

themselves
	 Finding effective and sustainable ways to move people around
	 Embracing the skills and experience of our older generation
	 Making sure we have the right homes in the right places
	 Attracting and keeping young people in the county and 

developing a skilled workforce
	 Continuously improving physical and digital connectivity
	 Reducing our impact on the climate, nature and the wider 

environment

 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

16

Page 30



Delivering the strategy
The development and delivery of the Community and Rural Strategy 
has been about how the Council and communities, particularly those 
in rural areas who may have reduced access to services, amenities, 
and public transport, can best work together to achieve solutions and 
outcomes that are right for that place. From the outset the approach 
has been collaborative, developing shared priorities with the vision that 
local areas identify local solutions to deliver the priorities, and listening 
to how the strategy could be implemented together. Through this 
process the role of the Council should be more focused on enabling  
the local solutions to take place whilst it provides direction and 
leadership of place and delivering strategic and county wide schemes 
and initiatives.

This approach has been developed taking account of published 
literature and learning that best met the emerging opportunities and 
issues arising from the work on the evidence base and engagement 
with stakeholders. A key reference document has been Building 
Collaborative Places: Infrastructure for System Change (Collaborate, 
2017). The approach is framed around but not limited to the following: 

	 A shared understanding of local challenges which informs  
the vision for the place, whether this is a community, a town,  
or a wider geographic area.

	 A cross-cutting, cross-sector and collaborative model  
of governance

	 Shared priorities and outcomes driving local accountability for 
their delivery 

	 A model that enables areas to identify priorities for them and the 
right solutions for their place 

	 Utilising social value and an asset-based approach to 
collaboratively make best use of resources in communities

	 Evidence based understanding of the challenges and issues and 
progress and impacts by all partners involved

	 Enabling space (digital and physical) for those who connect 
directly to individuals or communities or that communities or 
individuals connect through   

	 Enabling collaboration and changes to service delivery to take 
place as and when it needs to through effective communication 
and feedback arrangements, including responding to insights  
and evidence 

The proposed approach of having countywide and local plans for 
the delivery of the shared priorities has been developed with the 
development and implementation of other local strategic resources. 
The development of Local Economic Growth Strategies and Local 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessments have and will be taking place. 

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

17

Page 31



The local delivery plans for the shared priorities are a mechanism to 
bring together the different actions and activities to assist with the 
coordination of their delivery. These will provide the opportunity for 
town and parish councils, voluntary and community groups, private 
businesses and Shropshire Council services to set out how they 
will work together to contribute to the local delivery of the shared 
priorities. They may also identify enabling actions or support from 
Shropshire Council or other organisations to support the delivery of the 
local delivery plan. 

There will need to be local governance arrangements in place to guide 
the development and delivery of the local delivery plans, identifying 
and allocating resources, and setting local actions for the future where 
required.  These will need to be representative of the communities 
within their defined geography and membership would be expected to 
include town and parish councils, the voluntary community and social 
enterprise sector, and public services as a minimum.

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

18

Page 32



High Level Delivery Plan 2020/21

Action	 Responsible By when

Co-design local governance 
arrangements

Executive 
Director  
of Place

December 
2020

Reviewing actions to deliver Shropshire 
Council strategies and projects to 
identify how they support or deliver 
the Shared Priorities	

Executive 
Director  
of Place

November 
2020

Complete gap analysis and identify  
any additional actions that are  
required to be delivered by  
Shropshire Council	

Executive 
Director  
of Place

November 
2020

Develop the Countywide delivery  
plans for the shared priorities  
(to be reviewed and updated annually 
as required)

Executive 
Director  
of Place

January 
2021

Develop the local delivery plans for the 
shared priorities (to be reviewed and 
updated annually, as required)

Local Area 
Groups

June  
2021

Integrate elements from local delivery 
plans into the relevant Place Plans

Executive 
Director  
of Place	

Annually 
by October

Use the evidence base and local 
delivery plan actions to inform the 
development of local JSNAs

Director of 
Public Health

March 
2022

Shropshire Council Community and Rural Strategy September 2020

19

Page 33



Community and Rural Strategy
Collaborate, change together and achieve

September 2020

www.shropshire.gov.uk

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36


	Agenda
	9 Libraries Strategy
	10 Community and Rural Strategy
	community-and-rural-strategy


